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Georgia Health Equity Grant Initiative 
Q&A 

	QUESTIONS
	ANSWERS

	1. Should this year’s grant focus on building infrastructure or specifically addressing one or more of the specified health diseases?

	Some of these grant funds can be used to build your local health equity coalition.  However, it is preferred that a minimal amount of the budget be allocated to do so.   

	2. Is it open to organizations outside of Georgia (local health dept for example)
	This grant opportunity is not open to entities outside the state of Georgia.

	3. What are the identified OHI/OMI expectations under deliverables? 
	The OMI/OMH expectations for deliverables refers to pages 7-8, Program Requirements: Projected results:  

 Applicants must identify anticipated, measurable results that are consistent with the overall program purpose and that address selected OHI expectations. Project results should fall within the following general categories:

· Mobilizing communities, coalitions and networks by forming community groups, coalitions or local networks to promote reduction of health disparities.

· Enhancing infrastructure to improve the capacity for addressing health disparities at the state county and/or local levels.

· Increasing access to healthy care for underserved populations through such means as increasing access to insurance, decreasing geographic barriers to obtaining care and lowing cultural and linguistic barriers to care.

· Increasing knowledge an awareness to effect change in the target’s group attitudes regarding health disparities through promotional and educational programs.

· Increasing participation of minorities in the health professions to facilitate closing the health disparities gap through a diverse care workforce, including improving cultural and linguistic competence among health care professionals

	4. When does the actual funding period begin?

	The funding period for this grant cycle begins September 1, 2008.  

	5. How does this process work for on-going staffing expenses, like a salary? The disbursement of funds is identified as 'cost reimbursement'. (p.7). If so, what is the turn around on reimbursements?
	The DCH procurement process typically follows a cost reimbursement structure with the expectation that entities have sustainable funds for start-up.  A start-up, non-profit entity may be eligible for a cash advance based upon the discretion of the Department of Community Health.

The turnaround period for invoices is 30 days.  



	6. There is no mention of an IRB process in the RFP. What are the offerors requirements regarding Human Subjects?


	DCH does not have an Institutional Review Board (IRB).  A qualified applicant would have either an established protocol or approval under an affiliated IRB’s protocol, or both.  Qualified applicants should submit their research protocol for our approval.

	7. Are there any requirements to the format of the application regarding line spacing and font size


	There is no required format.  However, all applications should be neat and organized with best use of space possible. 

	8. Can a portion of the Health Equity grants be used for direct clinical services (e.g., prostate, cervical, breast cancer screening and follow-up tests) for uninsured patients who are not eligible for existing programs such as BreasTEST & MORE?


	Yes.

	9. What documentation is needed as proof of 501(c) 3 status?  


	Grantees do not have to be non-profit entities.  However, non-profit entities may provide verification of your 501(c)(3) status by submitting a letters of documentation for from the Georgia Secretary of State.   

	10. In reading the RFP, priority seems geared towards projects that provide direct health services (e.g., clinics and hospitals). Our work helps clients with cancer and HIV overcome health disparities (such as access to care barriers, lack of health insurance, discrimination, etc.) in order to improve their overall well-being. Would this work qualify? And if so, what kind of outcomes would you suggest we report?


	Yes, it does qualify.  Guidance as to report outcomes will not be provided in terms of suggesting what kind of outcomes to report. 

Activities as described by this inquiry would be supported by these grant funds. 
 

	11. When will the detailed data reports referred to in the 2008 health disparities Report be posted to the DCH web site? 

	The only data available at this point is the summary of reports. The detailed level county-reports will be posted shortly.

	12. Who should we contact to discuss possibilities for collaboration directly with DCH?
	Discussions for potential collaborations with the DCH Office of Health Improvement are not appropriate under the constraints of this grant opportunity.  However, opportunities to collaborate are welcome and may be discussed separate and apart from this funding opportunity.

	13. How closely does a community need to be defined?  Is a regional focus or collaboration acceptable in some cases, particular to the initiative being proposed?  For instance, if proposing an Electronic Health Record (EHR) or telemedicine-based initiative, regional might be more suitable than one 'community'.


	You may define “community” as you deem necessary to carry out the scope of services and deliverables of your proposed projects.  

A regional focus or collaboration is acceptable.

	14. Can you give some examples of what you would consider to be innovative programs?


	The procurement process does not allow for us to provide you with examples of innovative programs. 

	15. In Section III, program Description B. Project Need there is a list of “Health Status Indicators”.  Are these examples or are these only health indicators we can address? If other data sources exist, may they be used as the basis for the proposed projects?  

	These are just examples.  Data beyond that which is provided by this project may be used to support the proposed project.  
Proposed projects need to be in alignment with the findings on health disparities that are communicated in the report. 

The data must be statistically supported data.  



	16. The application guidelines state the disbursements will be based on a cost reimbursement, in accordance to the terms of payment outlined within the grant award.  Does that mean the organization will have to pay for costs any costs of implementing the grant, then be reimbursed for those expenses afterwards? 


	Yes, the expectation is that the entities making application for these grant funds will have an infrastructure in place and that this is in addition to activities that they’re already performing.  
Other disbursement processes may be addressed on a case by case basis.  

	17. The funding cycle says it's from July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2008.  I assume that's incorrect being that the deadline for submission is July 10, 2008 4pm. 


	Although this grant award is based on a 12-month period, the funding cycle is based on the state fiscal year.  

	18. Are all organizations (partnerships) required to be a federally tax exempt 501(c) 3 organization? 


	Eligibility is open to all public and private entities as well as community based organizations, including, but not limited to, Federally Qualified Health Clinics (FQHC’s), Rural Health Clinics, Volunteer Clinics, Rural and Critical Access Hospitals

	19. Can you provide a list of organizations that may be interested in partnering for this grant opportunity? 


	The organization and community you serve will determine who the partner should be based on the requirements as indicated in the RFP. 

	20. Is this the first instance of this grant being offered, and is it geared toward minorities (African Americans and Latinos)?  


	This is the first grant of its kind from the DCH office of Health Improvement.  Focus may be directed to minority and other underserved populations beyond African Americans and Hispanic/Latinos.  

	21. Can grant funds be utilized to purchase educational supplies for mammography?  


	Grant funds may be used to purchase materials that will support the project’s projected outcomes.  DCH is unable to be specific, as approval of the line item will need to be in consideration with the project scope.   

	22. In Section III, program Description B. Project Need there is a list of “Health Status Indicators.” Are these examples or are the only health indicators we can address? 
	The health indicators are provided as examples.

	23. In the other category in terms of the priority areas included--is mental health one of the areas?
	Mental health disparities may be addressed in your proposed projects.

	24. Will projects be considered for funding if they do not provide direct services?
	Yes, projects may be proposed that do not provide direct patient services.  However, they must demonstrate that health disparities are being reduced and/or eliminated and must have measurable outcomes.

	25. What are the requirements for matching funds?

	Match is required but in-kind match is acceptable.  DCH does not define a minimum amount for matching funds. 



	26. Is cash match used with higher priority in the review process than in-kind match?  

	While the use of matching funds is encouraged for support and sustainability of the proposed projects, priority will not be given to those who secure matching funds.    



	27. Did you specifically in the focus that’s stated in the initial opening sections talks about racial and ethnic disparities but then it goes on and in the definitions and in the narrative it talks about disease among Georgia’s minority population, the uninsured and the medically underserved.  And the social determinants of health being poverty and some of the other risk factors for disparities that exist in communities that have high levels of disparity that are
	In other words, it’s not just even though the focus is--because this is a minority health initiative--the focus is really on racial and ethnic disparities but we do understand that there are some counties where the poverty rates are so high for the whole county and there are health disparities that may go beyond just the black, white, Latino populations. So yes that would be--you would not be--your project would not be ineligible if you did something like that.  

	28. Can projects focus on disparities that go beyond the racial/ethnic axis? 


	Yes, the OHI recognizes that disparities exist beyond racial/ethnic lines such as with poverty rates among all races and rural vs. urban geographical localities.  Projects that work to address and improve health disparities within the identified communities will be considered for funding.


	29. Are there any restrictions on the percentage of the grant that could be used for staff salary?


	There is not a restriction on percentage of budget used for staffing.  However, applicants are encouraged to ensure the budget is appropriate with the approach of the project.  
DCH generally views 10% for administrative cost of the entire proposed budget as an acceptable and reasonable amount.  



	30. Are there any restrictions on the identification of the target populations?  For example, prisoners re-entering the community.

	Target populations may be defined as indigent, racial/ethnic minorities and/or underserved.   


	31. What is meant by return on investment? 

	DCH must see that the disbursement of funds is used to Tangible outcomes that are measurable.  They have to be measurable and quantifiable.

Dana:  Yes. 

Funding is for the purpose of reducing a disparity.  Demonstration of a reduction in disparity must be measurable and can be confirmed to represent a return on DCH’s investment.  



	32. Are letters of support helpful? 


	Letters of support are not required.  However, the submission of such letters would demonstrate that other entities or partners in your area feel your project is worthy for funding.   

	33. Can letters of support come from a non-partner who may be partnering on another grant?  
	This is allowable if it is in the same region and it’s covering a different part--let’s say a different county, that’s fine.



	34. In terms of sustainability, is there any anticipation that additional funding opportunities will arise beyond this initial 12 month funding cycle to allow for continuation of efforts under this program?  

	The OHI is hopeful that successful demonstration of this grant program and the GA Health Disparities Initiative will result in future funding.  


	35. Are you interested in new initiatives or is there a preference for new initiatives versus existing initiatives?


	There is no preference for new versus existing initiatives.  However, the initiatives must be focused on the goals as outlined in this RFP to reduce and/or eliminate health disparities.    



	36. Question under the “funding preference” section there are four focus disease areas identified.  The RFP suggests that projects must address one or more of the six diseases or risk factors. Are there two other specific diseases and/or risk factors that are being included in this requirement?


	The OHI listed its four priority areas and focused upon risk factors that contribute to racial/ethnic disparities.  The “other” category allows for the consideration of factors and disease not listed and is presented as a broad category to allow for applications to address areas that may be most relative to their county, community and/or region.  


	37. When should the letter of intent be submitted?  And, how is it used as a part of the RFP process? 

	The letter of intent is requested in order to secure a placeholder for applicants.  They are due by close of business on June 30, 2008.  


	38. Can you use the grant funding to provide services to the undocumented?

	The Department will take it under consideration.   


	39. Page 14 references indirect costs.  Is the last sentence saying that indirect costs should be no more than 10%? 


	Yes.  The OHI is looking to provide funding that will be beneficial in getting out into the community and making a difference.  Programs that are heavily focused on funding and supporting infrastructure may not result in the most tangible outcomes in meeting the objectives of this grant opportunity.
DCH places a 10% cap on Indirect cost categories.   



	40. Under the project description where it says, “probable statement” it gives several different websites on where you can get some information.  The one for Georgia’s underinsured counties, that website seems to not be working.  Is it different?  Is there a typo in there or is it just not working?  


	We just put that in there to just kind of give you some examples of where you kind of find some statistical data.  Feel free to use other sites like Oasis Public Health Data.  That’s just an example of where you can get some data from.



	41. Unknown:  Is that actually typed correctly because I’ve tried to pull it up several different times and it says, “Page not found.”  


	James:  We will double check and if it is mistyped we’ll post a correct address.

The Georgia County Guide is a publication that comes out of the University of Georgia.  If you Google or go online to look at that, you can look at a lot of the numbers that you’re trying to get from that same data--from that same website.  They would have counties listed by insured and uninsured.  That’s the GeorgiaCountyGuide.com, I believe.  And we’ll add that to the website when we post answers to the questions.  



	42.  What are the application requirements for the number of copies for submission?

	Applicants must submit one original and five copies of the application.  Two CD’s of your application in Microsoft Word must accompany this submission as well.    



	43.  Are there any page limitations for the proposal?  

	There is no limit to the total number of pages for your proposal.  The narrative is not to exceed ten typewritten pages.  


	44.  Where should letters of support be included in the proposal?  

	There is no requirement as to where these may be included.  The applicant may choose to include them as a part of the appendix.  


	45. Is a biographical sketch to be included also?  When is the biographical sketch due?
	There’s a letter of intent due in advance by June 30.   The letter of intent is mandatory

 In the list of required forms, the letter of intent is listed under “H” and the biographical sketch is listed under “G”



	46.  Does applying for the other breast cancer grant within your organization disqualify you from applying for this particular grant?


	No, it does not.

	47. Just for clarification on the funds that are available, you said the funds will be available September 1 and the grant itself says July 1 to June 30.  Does that mean it’s going to run from September 1 to June 30 or September 1 to August 30.


	The reference to July 1 is based upon availability of funding for the fiscal year.
September 1 to June 30 is the grant period, which may be extended, based upon status of completion. 


	48. Should your budget only go through June 30?


	Propose a twelve month budget but for our administrative processes we will have to take an action as of June 30 either to continue your program and continue the funding if you complete it.

	49. What are the reporting requirements for this grant?


	Monthly reports are due as indicated in the RFP.  The OHI will provide guidelines for the format and submission of reports when NGAs are made. 

	50. When do you anticipate making your award announcement?


	The Notice of Grant for Awards under this grant opportunity will be made not later than August 30, 2008.   



	51. Are the awards being made by geographical disbursement?  


	All proposals that demonstrate efforts to address the elimination and reduction of health disparities in Georgia will be considered.  The OHI has no restrictions or preferences on the awarding of the funds for this grant opportunity.  

	52. In regards to having a single application from an entity, do you regard various departments within the university with different projects as entities?
	Are you saying like for instance if you were working at let’s just say at university hospital and one department applied but another department also applied, to do different things would that be considered?

We would consider that.  We would prefer that we get one application from one entity not three or four applications from the same entity doing different things.  We would consider that.

It’s almost a matter of you competing against yourself.  So, there may be a need but it’s based on your organization’s practices.



	53. If the entity is not a 501(c)(3) from a national entity that’s working in collaboration locally here in Georgia with a Georgia non-profit, is there a priority that needs to be from national agency--be the lead agency?
	This is a Georgia based initiative.  So, I would say that the project would have to demonstrate how this is linking to communities in Georgia.



	54. DCH provided templates for the application packet.  Are applicants required to use these or may other formats be utilized?  
	Other formats are acceptable as long as they contain the pertinent information and headers for each category as indicated.  

	55. To whom should applicants address the Letter of Intent?  
	Letters of Intent should be directed to the attention of Dana Greer, Director of Procurement at 2 Peachtree Street, NW, 35th floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.  

LOI should be received close of business on June 30, 2008.  



	56. To whom should applicants address additional questions regarding the application process for the Health Equity Grant Initiative?
	Questions should be directed to the attention of Dana Greer at the address indicated in question 76 or by e-mail at dgreer@dch.ga.gov.  

* Please note that applicants should refrain from contacting OHI staff regarding this grant announcement or the application process as it such conduct would lead to applications not being considered for funding. 
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